
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

City Hall, G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers 
Monday, September 21, 2020 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements  
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held August 17, 2020 
• Executive Session held August 17, 2020 
• Special Called Meeting held September 2, 2020 
• Special Called Meeting held September 10, 2020 

b. Approve City Hall Closure on October 23, 2020 for Moonshine Festival 
c. Approve Resolution – Bee City USA Affiliate 
d. Approve Second Amendment to Farmer’s Market Use Agreement 
e. Approve Consulting Agreement with Gary Barr 

 

BUSINESS  
 

8. Appointment – Dawsonville History Museum Board of Directors        

      WORK SESSION 
 

9.   Solid Waste Collection Service Contract Renewal and Establish Annual City Service Charge 
 

      STAFF REPORTS 
 

10. Bob Bolz, City Manager 
11. Hayden Wiggins, Finance Administrator 

            

          EXECUTIVE SESSION IF NEEDED:  Pending or Potential Litigation, Real Estate Acquisition and/or Personnel 
 

          ADJOURNMENT   
 
 

The next scheduled City Council meeting is October 5, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or 
participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should contact the Clerk 
at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting.  



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/21/2020     
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held August 17, 2020 
• Executive Session held August 17, 2020 
• Special Called Meeting held September 2, 2020 
• Special Called Meeting held September 10, 2020 

b. Approve City Hall Closure on October 23, 2020 for Moonshine Festival 
c. Approve Resolution – Bee City USA Affiliate 
d. Approve Second Amendment to Farmer’s Market Use Agreement 
e. Approve Consulting Agreement with Gary Barr 

 
       

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/21/2020      
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 
 

• REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION HELD AUGUST 17, 2020 
• EXECUTIVE SESSION HELD AUGUST 17, 2020 
• SPECIAL CALLED MEETING HELD SEPTEMBER 2, 2020 
• SPECIAL CALLED MEETING HELD SEPTEMBER 10, 2020 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers, City Hall 2nd Floor 
Monday, August 17, 2020 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Mike Eason called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.   

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember John Walden, Councilmember Mark French, 
Councilmember Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Stephen Tolson, City Attorney Dana Miles, City 
Manager Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly Banister, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard, and 
Finance Administrator Hayden Wiggins.   
 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and Pledge were led by Councilmember Walden. 
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Eason reminded everyone the importance of participating in the 
2020 Census and the impact on local and state funding.  He announced the restroom at Main 
Street Park should be opening within the next few weeks and the City is moving forward with the 
construction of the dog park at the back of Main Street Park.  He also reported the Governor has 
release his newest executive order related to COVID-19 which allows some action by local 
governments; a review is underway to determine any needs for our City. 
 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda as presented made by M. French; 
second by S. Tolson.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 
 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  No comments from the public.   

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a, b, c, d, e) 
made by S. Tolson; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting held August 3, 2020 

b. Approve Coronavirus Relief Fund Resolution - Exhibit “A” 
c. Approve Ratification of Coronavirus Relief Fund Agreement Signed by Mayor Eason 
d. Approve Lease Contract for Wide Format Printer/Scanner for P&Z Department 
e. Approve Change Order for Modifications to Well #110 

 

BUSINESS 
 

8. FY 2020 SPLOST VI BUDGET AMENDMENT:  Motion to approve the SPLOST VI budget 
amendment in the amount of $456,657 for the 2019-2020 fiscal year by M. French; second by C. 
Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

9. MILLAGE RATE:  Motion to set the 2020 millage rate to 8.511 and roll it back to zero made by M. 
French; second by S. Tolson.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

WORK SESSION 
 

10. 53rd ANNUAL MOUNTAIN MOONSHINE FESTIVAL DISCUSSION:  Tiffany Buchan and Rhonda 
Goodwin from Kare for Kids presented their plan for the annual festival considering the COVID-19 
pandemic; options from both presenters and the City Council were discussed.  Additional time is 
needed to determine the amount and placement of vendors and to consider the options presented. 

 

Motion to set a Special Called City Council Meeting on September 2, 2020 at 4:00 pm and to 
postpone the 53rd Annual Mountain Moonshine Event Application with Road Closures until 
September 2, 2020 made by S. Tolson; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   
 

11. OPERATIONAL EFFICIENCY STUDY DISCUSSION:  Mayor Eason stated Dawson County 
invited the City to consider participating in a joint efficiency study through Carl Vinson with Dawson 
County and Etowah Water and Sewer Authority during a City/County joint meeting discussion of 
SPLOST VII.  He researched and found an efficiency study available through GMA and thought it 
more prudent to have our operations looked at individually as opposed to comparing us to a larger 
entity such as the County and Etowah.  Discussed occurred among Council. 
 

Motion to approve the agreement with GMA to provide consulting services for the City not to 
exceed $4,000 to be paid from the General Fund FY 2021 budget made by J. Walden; second by 
S. Tolson.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers, City Hall 2nd Floor 
Monday, August 17, 2020 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 

12. BOB BOLZ, CITY MANAGER:  City Manager Bolz stated he provided an update on City projects 
in the packet but also reported on the following: 

• Levi Foulks, a utility employee has given his two weeks’ notice.  
• Food Truck Friday was successful and enjoyed responsibly by residents.  

 

13. HAYDEN WIGGINS, FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR:  Financial reports representing fund balances 
and activity provided through July 31, 2020.   
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 

At 5:58 p.m. a motion to close regular session and go into executive session for personnel was 
made by S. Tolson; second by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

At 6:22 p.m. a motion to close executive session and resume regular session was made by C. 
Phillips; second by S. Tolson.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.   

 

ADJOURNMENT:   
 

At 6:26 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by J. Walden; second by C. Phillips.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.   

 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
         
              ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 
 
    
   ___________________________________ 
   Stephen Tolson, Councilmember Post 2 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
    
 
 
 
 
Attested: ________________________        
              Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 
 





EXHIBIT "A"



EXHIBIT "A"

































































MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers, City Hall 2nd Floor 
Wednesday, September 2, 2020 

 4:00 P.M. 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Mike Eason called the meeting to order at 4:00 pm.   

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember John Walden, Councilmember Mark French, 
Councilmember Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Stephen Tolson, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City 
Manager Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly Banister, Public Works Director Trampas Hansard and 
Utilities Director Gary Barr.   
 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and Pledge were led by Councilmember French. 
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Mike Eason announced a census representative will be at the 
Farmer’s Market on Saturday, 09/05/2020 expressing the importance of everyone being counted 
in the 2020 census.  
 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to amend the agenda to add item #8 Georgia EPD 
Proposed Expedited Enforcement Compliance Order made by S. Tolson; second by J. Walden.  
Vote carried unanimously in favor.   

 

Attorney Tallant confirmed according to the City’s Charter Section 2.21(b), an amendment to the 
agenda to add an item of a Special Called meeting can only be done through unanimous approval. 

 

Motion to approve the agenda as amended made by C. Phillips; second by S. Tolson.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor. 
 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  No comments from the public.   
 

BUSINESS 
 

7. FIFTY-THIRD ANNUAL MOUNTAIN MOONSHINE FESTIVAL   

A. PERMIT REQUEST FROM KARE FOR KIDS FOR FESTIVAL:  Rhonda Goodwin and 
Tiffany Buchan discussed with the Council their plans for the festival regarding 
placement of the vendors and the efforts to implement practices to prevent the spread 
of COVID-19.  They stated they will not require a person to leave for not wearing a mask 
but will encourage it and have masks available.  With plans not fully in place to date, 
the Council considered another Special Called meeting to review and consider 
approval.   
 

Motion to set a Special Called City Council Meeting on September 10, 2020 at 4:00 pm 
and to postpone the 53rd Annual Mountain Moonshine Event Application with Road 
Closures until September 10, 2020 made by S. Tolson; second by M. French.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.   

 

B. PERMIT REQUEST FROM GEORGIA RACING HALL OF FAME FOR ALCOHOL 
SALES AT FESTIVAL:  City Manager Bolz provided a summary of the request for the 
alcohol application to the City Council.   
 

Motion to approve the alcohol application as submitted made by M. French; second by 
S. Tolson.   
 

Attorney Tallant asked for clarification as to whether the Council will permit alcohol sales 
even if the Mountain Moonshine Festival does not go forward.  Scott Adams, a 
representative of the museum, stated they would not sell alcohol if the festival did not 
occur.   
 

Councilmember French amended his motion to approve the alcohol application upon 
the contingency of the Mountain Moonshine Festival occurring; second by S. Tolson.  
Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers, City Hall 2nd Floor 
Wednesday, September 2, 2020 

 4:00 P.M. 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

8. GEORGIA EPD PROPOSED EXPEDITED ENFORCEMENT COMPLIANCE ORDER:  City 
Manager Bolz updated the Council on the request. 
 

Motion to accept the proposed expedited enforcement compliance order as presented made by S. 
Tolson; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

 

ADJOURNMENT:   
 

At 4:24 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by C. Phillips.; second by J. Walden.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.   

 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
         
              ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 
 
    
   ___________________________________ 
   Stephen Tolson, Councilmember Post 2 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
    
 
 
 
 
Attested: ________________________        
              Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers, City Hall 2nd Floor 
Thursday, September 10, 2020 

 4:00 P.M. 

 

Page 1 of 2 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Mike Eason called the meeting to order at 4:00 pm.   

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember John Walden, Councilmember Mark French, 
Councilmember Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Stephen Tolson, City Attorney Kevin Tallant, City 
Manager Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly Banister and Public Works Director Trampas Hansard.   
 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and Pledge were led by Councilmember Phillips. 
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Eason reminded the community to participate in the census and a 
representative will be present again during the Farmer’s Market on Saturday.  He also announced 
Food Truck Friday will be on 09/11/2020 at the Farmer’s Market starting at 5:00 pm.   
 

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda as presented made by M. French; 
second by S. Tolson.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 
 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  No comments from the public.   
 

BUSINESS 
 

7. FIFTY-THIRD ANNUAL MOUNTAIN MOONSHINE FESTIVAL   

A. PERMIT REQUEST FROM KARE FOR KIDS FOR FESTIVAL:  Mayor Eason asked 
Rhonda Goodwin if the Kare for Kids Board has approved holding the festival; she 
responded the Board has approved it.  City Manager Bolz stated approval was received 
from the Sheriff’s department, GDOT approved use of the state highways with the 
stipulation of meeting the Governor’s executive order regarding the pandemic, as well 
as the Fire Department.  Mayor Eason provided a brief overview of the application 
requests.  Tiffany Buchan stated Greg Rowan with the Sheriff’s department 
recommended keeping Route 53 closed (7:00 am to 7:00 pm) to avoid any issues with 
pedestrian traffic crossing over Route 53 during festival hours.  Mayor Eason asked if 
documentation from the Sheriff’s office was available; Tiffany Buchan stated she could 
get it.   
 

Motion to approve application and road closures as presented and to incorporate 
signage as directed by the Governor’s executive order in effect at the time of the festival 
made by M. French; second by S. Tolson.  
 

Discussion occurred regarding the placement and assigning of spaces for the vendors.  
Clarification stated by Councilmember Phillips that if the festival needed to be 
expanded, the vendors would be placed on Route 53 and the highway will be closed 24 
hours a day or if no vendors are placed on Route 53 then the highway would only be 
closed from 7:00 am – 7:00 pm.  Rhonda Goodwin stated they will be filling all the 
spaces within the park and Allen Street first before using Route 53.  
 

Vote carried unanimously in favor. 
 

ADJOURNMENT:   
 

At 4:33 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by S. Tolson; second by J. Walden.  Vote 
carried unanimously in favor.   

 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
         
              ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers, City Hall 2nd Floor 
Thursday, September 10, 2020 

 4:00 P.M. 

 

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 
 
  
   ___________________________________ 
   Stephen Tolson, Councilmember Post 2 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
    
 
 
 
 
Attested: ________________________        
              Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   APPROVE CITY HALL CLOSURE ON OCTOBER 23, 2020 FOR MOONSHINE                                         

FESTIVAL 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE(S):  09/21/2020       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:    
 
TO REQUEST THE CLOSING OF CITY HALL ON FRIDAY, OCTOBER 23, 2020 FOR THE USE OF 
CITY HALL PROPERTY FOR THE 53RD ANNUAL MOUNTAIN MOONSHINE FESTIVAL 
 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• EMPLOYEES WILL BE EXPECTED TO TELEWORK OR COME INTO CITY HALL IF 
PREFERRED.  PTO CAN BE REQUESTED AS WELL  
 

• ANNUAL MOONSHINE FESTIVAL IS HELD THE 4TH WEEKEND IN OCTOBER 
 

• SET-UP FOR ACTIVITIES, SWAP MEET AND CAR SHOW START ON FRIDAY AT CITY 
HALL; NO PARKING AVAILABLE FOR RESIDENTS OR STAFF 
 

• CITY HALL CLOSED LAST FOURS YEARS FOR THIS EVENT  
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
     TO APPROVE, AMEND OR DENY      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
     VOTE 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:   Bob Bolz, City Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     7b     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   APPROVE RESOLUTION – BEE CITY USA AFFILIATE  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/21/2020    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO APPROVE THE RESOLUTION DESIGNATING DAWSONVILLE AS A BEE CITY USA 
AFFILIATE 

 
 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
  REQUEST MADE BY THE DAWSON COUNTY WOMEN’S CLUB WHO DONATED AND 

PLANTED THE POLLINATOR GARDEN AT MAIN STREET PARK 
 
              

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 
 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager____ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #    7c    
 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL    
DESIGNATING DAWSONVILLE AS A BEE CITY USA® AFFILIATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the mission of BEE CITY USA is to galvanize communities to sustain pollinators, 

responsible for the reproduction of almost 90% of the world's flowering plant species, by 
providing them with healthy habitat, rich in a variety of native plants and free to nearly free of 
pesticides; and 
 

WHEREAS, thanks to the more than 3,600 species of native bees in the United States, along 
with introduced honey bees, we have very diverse dietary choices rich in fruits, nuts, and 
vegetables; and 
 

WHEREAS, bees and other pollinators have experienced population declines due to a 
combination of habitat loss, poor nutrition, pesticides (including insecticides, fungicides, and 
herbicides), parasites, diseases, and climate change; and  
 

WHEREAS, pollinator-friendly communities can benefit local and regional economies 
through healthier ecosystems, increased vegetable and fruit crop yields, and increased demand 
for pollinator-friendly plant materials from local growers; and 

 
WHEREAS, ideal pollinator-friendly habitat (A) Is comprised of mostly native wildflowers, 

grasses, vines, shrubs, and trees blooming in succession throughout the growing season to provide 
diverse and abundant nectar and pollen, since many wild pollinators prefer or depend on the 
native plants with which they co-adapted; (B) is free to nearly free of pesticides, as many pesticides 
can harm pollinators and/or their habitat; (C) comprises undisturbed spaces (leaf and brush piles, 
unmown fields or field margins, fallen trees and other dead wood) for nesting and overwintering; 
and (D) provides connectivity between habitat areas to support pollinator movement and 
resilience; and 

 
WHEREAS, Integrated Pest Management (IPM) is a long-term approach to maintaining 

healthy landscapes and facilities that minimizes risks to people and the environment by: 
identifying and removing the causes of pest problems rather than only attacking the symptoms 
(the pests); employing pests' natural enemies along with cultural, mechanical, and physical 
controls when prevention is not enough; and using pesticides only when no other method is 
feasible or effective; and 

 
WHEREAS, supporting pollinators fosters broad-based community engagement in 

environmental awareness and sustainability; and 
 
WHEREAS, Dawsonville should be certified a BEE CITY USA community because 

Dawsonville is a small town with a very successful Main Street Park.  This new Park attracts city 
and county (Dawson) visitors for a variety of activities. The Dawson County Woman’s Club, an 
affiliate of the General Federation of Women’s Clubs, has created and maintained a pollinator 
garden with native plants, plant identification tags, brochures and signage to educate and 
encourage the residents of the community to plant a spot for pollinators.  Native plants and seeds 
are distributed on a weekly basis to the public at the Farmers’ Market.  Pollinator spots are also 
chosen at local businesses, offices and government buildings and given native plants and a Save 
our Bees yard sign.  Presentations have been provided for the general public regarding pollinators, 
their perils, protection and plantings. 

 



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in order to enhance understanding among local government staff and the 
public about the vital role that pollinators play and what each of us can do to sustain them, 
Dawsonville chooses to support and encourage healthy pollinator habitat creation and 
enhancement, resolving as follows: 

 
1. The Dawson County Woman’s Club is hereby designated as the BEE CITY USA sponsor.  
2. Bob Bolz, City Manager of Dawsonville, is designated as the BEE CITY USA Liaison. 
3. Facilitation of Dawsonville’s BEE CITY USA program is assigned to the Dawson County 

Woman’s Club Pollinator Committee.  
4. The Dawson County Woman’s Club Pollinator Committee is authorized to: 

a. Celebration: Host at least one educational event or pollinator habitat planting or 
restoration each year to showcase Dawsonville’s commitment to raising awareness 
of pollinator conservation and expanding pollinator health and habitat. 

b. Publicity & Information: Install and maintain at least one authorized BEE 
CITY USA street sign in a prominent location, and create and maintain a webpage 
on the Dawson County Woman’s Club website which includes, at minimum a copy 
of this resolution and links to the national BEE CITY USA website; contact 
information for your BEE CITY USA Liaison and Committee; reports of the 
pollinator-friendly activities the community has accomplished the previous 
year(s); and your recommended native plant species list and integrated pest 
management plan (explained below). 

c. Habitat: Develop and implement a program to create or expand pollinator-
friendly habitat on public and private land, which includes, but is not limited to, 
Identifying and inventorying Dawsonville real property that can be enhanced with 
pollinator-friendly plantings; creating a recommended locally native plant list to 
include wildflowers, grasses, vines, shrubs, and trees and a list of local suppliers 
for those species; and, tracking (by square footage and/or acreage) annual area of 
pollinator habitat created or enhanced. 

d. Pollinator-Friendly Pest Management: Create and recommend to the public 
an integrated pest management (IPM) plan designed to prevent pest problems, 
reduce pesticide use, and expand the use of non-chemical pest management 
methods.  

e. Policy & Plans: Provide input for the Design Guidelines of the Dawsonville 
Comprehensive Plan related to the BEE CITY USA designation and goals. 

f. Renewal: After completing the first calendar year as a BEE CITY USA affiliate, 
each February, apply for renewal of Dawsonville’s BEE CITY USA designation 
following the format provided by BEE CITY USA, including a report of the previous 
year’s BEE CITY USA activities, and paying the renewal fee based on Dawsonville’s 
population. 

 
 
SO ADOPTED AND RESOLVED by the Dawsonville City Council of the Dawsonville, GA, this 
____ day of ____________________, 2020. 
 

MAYOR AND DAWSONVILLE CITY  
 COUNCIL 
 
 

By:        
       Mike Eason, Mayor 

 



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

  
       
Caleb Phillips, Council Member Post 1 

 
             
             
       Stephen Tolson, Council Member Post 2 
 
             
             
       John Walden, Council Member Post 3 
 
 
             
       Mark French, Council Member Post 4 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED TO BY: 
 
 
       
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 
 
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:        APPROVE SECOND AMENDMENT TO FARMER’S MARKET USE 

AGREEMENT 
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/21/2020      
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE FARMER’S MARKET USE AGREEMENT 

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
 

    ADDITIONAL HOURS ON WEDNESDAY REQUESTED UNTIL 7:00 PM (DUSK) 
 

    ADDITIONAL MARKET DAYS (WEDNESDAYS AND SATURDAYS) THROUGH NOVEMBER 
2020 

     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY:  Bob Bolz, City Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7d      
 

 

 



Page 1 of 3 
 

 SECOND AMENDMENT TO FARMERS MARKET USE AGREEMENT 

This Second Amendment to Farmers Market Use Agreement (hereinafter referred 

to as the “Second Amendment”) is entered into and effective this ____ day of 

September, 2020, by and between the CITY OF DAWSONVILLE (hereinafter 

referred to as “CITY”), a Georgia municipal corporation, and the DAWSON COUNTY 

CHAMBER OF COMMERCE, INC., a Georgia non-profit corporation, by and through 

its authorized committee the AMICALOLA REGIONAL FARMERS MARKET, 

(hereinafter referred to as “CHAMBER”) for the use of the CITY’s Farmers Market 

Pavilion located on Allen Street (hereinafter referred to as “the Pavilion”). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto previously entered into a Farmers Market Use 

Agreement on March 11, 2020 (the “Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the parties entered into a First Amendment to Farmers Market Use 

Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the “First Amendment”) on July 21, 2020. 

WHEREAS, the parties have determined that their needs have changed slightly 

since the Agreement and the First Amendment were executed and have determined that 

this Second Amendment serves the best interest of all parties. 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and 

obligations set forth herein and other good and valuable consideration mutually 

exchanged this date between parties hereto, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby 

acknowledged, the parties hereby agree to this Second Amendment to Farmers Market 

Use Agreement by deleting paragraphs 2, 3 and 5 from the Agreement and First 

Amendment and substituting new paragraphs 2, 3 and 5 as follows: 



Page 2 of 3 
 

2. Term of this Agreement. This Agreement shall become effective on execution 

by the parties and shall continue in full force and effect until terminated. The CHAMBER 

shall have use of the Pavilion as set forth hereinafter on Saturdays and Wednesdays from 

April 18, 2020 until November 28, 2020.  This Agreement shall terminate after November 

28, 2020 unless renewed by the parties in writing.   

3. Consideration. In consideration of the right to use the Pavilion to hold farmers 

markets, CHAMBER agrees to pay ten dollars ($10) per month for three (3) months to 

the CITY beginning April 18, 2020 and fifteen dollars ($15) for five (5) months beginning 

July 18, 2020. 

5. Duties and Obligations of CHAMBER. CHAMBER shall hold a Farmers 

Market at the Pavilion each Saturday and Wednesday during the Term. Said schedule 

shall cover an eight (8) month period and include the start and ending times for each 

occurrence of the Farmers Market. On Saturdays, the Farmers Market shall not open for 

sales before 8:00 a.m. and shall end sales no later than dusk. On Wednesdays, the 

Farmers Market shall not open for sales before 2:00 p.m. and shall end sales no later than 

dusk. CHAMBER shall be responsible for the policing, monitoring, and regulating 

products sold at each Farmers Market, as well as policing, monitoring, and regulating any 

vendors that CHAMBER allows to sell products at any occurrence of its Farmers Market. 

CHAMBER shall keep the Pavilion in a clean, neat, litter-free, and orderly condition, and 

shall be responsible for cleaning up after each use of the Pavilion. CHAMBER shall pick 

up any trash or debris left from the use of the Pavilion or sale of products, as well as return 

the Pavilion to the CITY in the condition it was found prior to use. CHAMBER shall not 

dispose, or allow any vendor to dispose of, any unsold merchandise on site or in on site 



Page 3 of 3 
 

trash receptacles. At no time shall CHAMBER allow more than thirty (30) vendors to sell 

its products or merchandise at any occurrence of the Farmers Market.  

 

 Other than as modified hereinabove, all terms of the Agreement and First 

Amendment shall remain in place and are ratified by the parties.  In witness whereof, the 

parties hereto have executed this Second Amendment on the date(s) set forth below with 

an effective date of the last to sign.  

 
 
CITY OF DAWSONVILLE  DAWSON COUNTY CHAMBER OF 
  COMMERCE, INC. 
 
 
 
___________________________  ___________________________ 
By: Mike Eason, Mayor  By: Christie Moore, CEO 
 
 
 
Date:________________  Date:__________________ 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
__________________________  __________________________ 
Beverly Banister, Clerk  Connie Smith, Secretary 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   APPROVE CONSULTING AGREEMENT WITH GARY BARR  

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/21/2020    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
 

   TO APPROVE CONSULTING AGREEMENT WITH GARY BARR 
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
   
          

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 
 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   7e     
 

 

 



Page 1 of 3 
 

CONSULTING AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN GARY BARR AND CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

 

WHEREAS, Gary Barr (hereinafter “Barr”) is retiring from his employment as 
Director of Utilities with the City of Dawsonville (hereinafter “City”) effective 
September 30, 2020; 

WHEREAS, Barr has extensive knowledge and background in the City’s water and 
sewer infrastructure, stormwater  and watershed systems and operations; 

WHEREAS, the City desires to consult with Barr from time to time over the time 
period of this Consulting Agreement (hereinafter the “Agreement”) for the purpose of 
ensuring a smooth transition and continued efficient operation of its Utilities 
Department; and 

WHEREAS, Barr is willing to provide Consulting Services (hereinafter the “Services”) 
to the City based upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.   

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual benefits accruing to each of the 
parties hereunder and for other good and valuable consideration, they agree as 
follows:  

1. Barr will provide the Services as directed by the City Manager and for all purposes 
hereunder shall report to the City Manager.  Barr shall have no authority to 
approve expenditures, requisitions or purchase orders for the City.  Barr shall have 
no personnel supervisory duties related to City employees.  Barr shall not be an 
employee of the City, but will be an independent contractor. 

2. The Services shall be provided both during the City business day as well as from 
time to time during evening hours to attend meetings or to assist with 
unanticipated emergency situations. 

3. The Services provided shall not exceed 10 hours per week.  Barr shall be paid 
compensation of $41.75 per hour for the Services on a monthly basis.  No 
compensation shall be paid for any hours in excess of 10 hours per week absent 
prior approval by the City Manager for an emergent situation.  Barr will be 
responsible for payment of all taxes, fees or costs owed to federal, state or local 
authorities as a result of the compensation paid hereunder. 

4. Barr will present a monthly invoice to the City reflecting the days and hours 
worked.  The City will pay the monthly invoice within ten (10) business days 
following the date it is submitted by Barr. 

5. Barr shall provide the following scope of Services as requested and directed by the 
City Manager during the term of this Agreement: 

 



Page 2 of 3 
 

a. Provide recommendations for strategic planning for all water, sewer, 
stormwater and watershed systems for the City of Dawsonville. 

b. Provide recommendations for the operation and administration of water and 
wastewater treatment, engineering and construction services, environmental 
compliance and permitting. 

c. Provide recommendations for departmental budget, especially with regard to 
long range planning. 

d. Assist with the development of annual revenue forecasts and corresponding 
budgets.  

e. Provide recommendations for long and short-range plans for both water and 
sewer systems improvements and expansions, the development of five-year 
Capital Improvement Program and associated financing plans.  

f. Provide recommendations related to capital projects, including development of 
plans and specifications. 

g. Assist the Planning and Zoning Director and the City Manager in meetings with 
developers to review water and sewer planning. 

h. Provide recommendations and assist with meetings with the State Department 
of Transportation, various Dawson County departments, and City Public Works 
and Planning Departments to coordinate road and other improvements that 
impact water, sanitary sewer, and stormwater systems. 

i. Provide recommendations and assist with meetings with GA DNR EPD, Corps 
of Engineers, EPA, and others regarding water and sewer system operations, 
permits, governing regulations and reporting requirements. 

j. Provide recommendations regarding the City’s Sewer Use Ordinance, 
Industrial Pretreatment Program, Water Conservation Program and City 
Subdivision Regulations related to water and sewer requirements. 

k. Such other related consulting services as may be requested by the City 
Manager. 

6. The term of this Agreement shall be from October 1, 2020 until June 30, 2021 
unless earlier terminated.  Either party has the right to terminate this Agreement 
upon ten (10) business days written notice to the other. 

7. This Agreement is the entire agreement of the parties and shall be governed in all 
aspects by Georgia law.  

 

SO AGREED, this the ____ day of September, 2020. 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 

CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA  GARY BARR 

 

 

By:______________________  By:_______________________ 
       Mike Eason, Mayor           Gary Barr 
 
 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 
 
 



                                           
 

 

     SUBJECT:  APPOINTMENT – DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM BOARD OF       
DIRECTORS_ 

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/21/2020      
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
  
      TO APPOINT CODY DINSMORE TO THE DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS TO FILL THE UNEXPIRED TERM OF TRAMPAS HANSARD THROUGH 
08/04/2022 

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
      

• VETTING PROCESS IS COMPLETE 
• NOMINATED BY THE DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 AMEND OR APPROVE 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
      VOTE   
 
 

 
          REQUESTED BY:   Donna Blanton, Human Resource Manager 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   8   
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICE CONTRACT RENEWAL AND 

ESTABLISH ANNUAL CITY SERVICE CHARGE  
   

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/21/2020    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

1. TO PRESENT THE NEW RATE OF COMPENSATION TO THE SOLID WASTE CONTRACTOR FOR 
RENEWAL OF SERVICES IN 2021 AS PERMITTED IN THE CONTRACT 

 
2. TO ESTABLISH THE CITY’S ANNUAL SERVICE CHARGE TO COVER THE ADMIN AND CAPITAL 

COSTS INCURRED FOR PROVIDING THE SERVICE TO RESIDENTS 
 

 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
    2020 CONTRACTOR RATE - $13.00 PER CAN, PER MONTH 
 

    2021 CONTRACTOR RATE - $13.20 PER CAN, PER MONTH 
 
     
    2020 CITY SERVICE CHARGE TO RESIDENTS - $15.50 
 
    2021 RECOMMENDED SERVICE CHARGE TO RESIDENTS – $15.50       

   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
   APPROVE, AMEND, DENY 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
   APPROVE NEW CONTRACTOR RATE OF $13.20 PER CAN, PER MONTH FOR 2021 AND SET 2021 

SERVICE CHARGE TO RESIDENTS AT $15.50 
 
 

 
     REQUESTED BY: Hayden Wiggins, Finance Administrator__________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   9     
 

 

 







                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       STAFF REPORT: CITY MANAGER    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  09/21/2020       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO PROVIDE PROJECT UPDATES 

 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
    SEE ATTACHED OUTLINE 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:  Bob Bolz, City Manager    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     10     
 

 

 



1 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT – SEPTEMBER 21, 2020 

COVID-19 Update: City Hall has re-opened, and most staff have now returned from teleworking. Everyone’s 
temperature is checked as they come to work, both at City Hall and at the maintenance facilities. PPE is available 
for all personnel. Public Works and Utilities are still asked to ride one to a vehicle. We continue to participate in 
weekly GMA teleconferences and bi-weekly teleconferences with the Dawson County Pandemic Stakeholders 
Committee. We utilize our disinfectant fogger every two weeks in an effort to keep our facilities safe for 
customers and staff. 

Farmer’s Market: The Farmer’s Market added Wednesday from 3-6PM to their Saturday 8AM-12PM schedule. 
They have asked to remain open until 7 PM on Wednesday evening to allow folks returning home from work to 
shop. Saturdays continue to be well attended. They have also suggested continuing the market into November 
for fall harvests I have submitted these changes to our attorney for upgrading their contract 

Playground: The new playground continues to be a hit with standing room only crowds common. We have had 
some troubles with Junior High kids, over the 12 YOA restriction, trying to monopolize the equipment with 
several complaints from parents about language, vaping, and fear for their smaller children. We have been 
working with the DCSO to resolve this problem along with staff being present during these times. 

Everlast & the Main Street Park Rest Room: A walk-thru was conducted and a Punch List developed. At this 
writing, another walk-thru to ascertain if all punch list items have been resolved is scheduled for Friday, 
September 18th. I hope by Monday night meeting, I will be able to bring good news. 

Main Street Park: While the contracts for the fencing and rest room are drawing to a close, and the landscape 
contract in the warranty phase; staff continue to work hard to maintain and add amenities. Currently we have 
three Eagle Scout candidates who are interested in projects in the park. One candidate is working on the dog 
park and has already raised $3,000 to go toward that project. Another candidate desires to build a trail 
connecting the park to the library and fire station #1 that would also include a loop trail through the adjoining 
wooded area. A third candidate will be discussing development of a disc golf course. Staff are seeking bids on 
construction of a picnic shelter and plan to install boulders to prevent vehicles from driving on park grounds. 
We have been blessed with a number of donations. In addition to the Civitan’s donation of a wheelchair swing 
and the Women’s Club donation of pollinator gardens and eight benches, we have a new swing donated in 
Memory of Nancy Eason, donation of another swing by the family of KK Turner, donation of some trees, and 
additional benches. The dog park grading and hydroseeding has been completed and irrigations will soon be 
added to the pollinator gardens. 

Test Manhole Project at Gold Creek Foods: Townley Construction received the contract for this project and 
once they were notified, they ordered the custom manhole and testing apparatus. These have a six-eight week 
required lead time. Once the manhole is received, hopefully in early October, they will begin the project. 

Paving Repairs - Main Street, Memory Lane and Jack Heard Street: Turnipseed Engineering is preparing a bid 
package for milling, deep patch repair and overlay for Main Street, Memory Lane, Jack Heard Street and 
hopefully Maple Street if bids are not too great. We hope to put this out to bid this fall with hopes of getting the 
project completed before winter. This project is funded through SPLOST VI. 

Sidewalks: Turnipseed Engineering is also engineering sidewalks connecting Main Street Park to the Farmer’s 
Market. 



2 
 

Refurbish and Painting of Burt’s Crossing Water Tower: This project is scheduled for this fiscal year in the 
Enterprise Fund and should be going out for bid soon with a pre-bid meeting scheduled for October 22nd. 

GDOT Safety-Related Issues: We have been advised by GDOT that they are seriously considering making 
Perimeter Road and GA Hwy 9 N a four way stop. If this happens, we might finally be able to push a pedestrian 
crossing at that location. Previously that has not been permissible by GDOT due to speed limits they set. We 
received and responded to a Safety Audit Report of downtown/Hwys 53 and 9 that was conducted in October 
2019. 

Personnel: We have made a number of staffing changes and promotions to make our operation more efficient 
and to provide better customer service. 

• David Picklesimer interviewed and was promoted from Inspector to Planning & Zoning Director. We are 
excited about his changes and anticipate great things from his leadership and experience. 

• With David’s promotion, this leaves a tremendous void in the Inspector position. We are advertising for 
this vacancy. 

• Stacy Harris will transfer from Customer Service Technician/Information Technology Specialist to an 
administrative position in Planning and Zoning. Some of her duties were moved to other staff. She will 
continue to handle our IT program. Her first task, a monumental one, is to bring order to the chaos that 
is the files in the PZ Department. Since the days of Steve Holder, these files have never been consistently 
and properly taken care of. 

• With Stacy’s transfer upstairs, a big hole is created in the front office and we are seeking applicants now. 
• Utility Director Gary Barr has decided to retire after 30 exemplary years of service. His last day will be 

September 30th. We hope to hire him as a consultant for 10 hours per week to take advantage of his 
knowledge. In that role he will primarily handle strategic planning and capital projects. We will not fill 
his position initially. Jacob will continue his job as Foreman in that department. 

• We continually seek to fill the one vacant position of Treatment Plant Operator in the Utility Department. 
We hope to interview soon. 

Employee Recognition: Even though City Council Meetings were being handled virtually for several months, our 
recognition of our outstanding employees continues. I wanted to summarize those for you here. Perhaps in 
October we can start recognizing staff again at in person meetings. 

• Beverly Banister – Attained Certified Clerk status 
• Clay Moss – Became a Certified Playground Inspector by the CPSI 
• Employee of the Month: 

 January 2020 – Stan Zaverhuka 
 February 202 – David Picklesimer 
 March 2020 – Tracy Smith 
 April 2020 – Bev Banister 
 May 2020 – Trampas Hansard 
 June 2020 – Hayden Wiggins 
 July2020 – David Picklesimer 

 
 



3 
 

• Employee of the Quarter 
 1st Quarter (January-March) – Stan Zaverhuka 
 2nd Quarter (April-June) – Trampas Hansard 

Relay for Life: Originally scheduled for September 18th, the Cancer Society has cancelled all events for 2020 due 
to pandemic safety concerns. They hope to reschedule this event for April 2021. 

Gold Rush Festival: The Dahlonega-Lumpkin County Jaycees decided in the interest of public health it best to 
cancel this year’s event. 

Food Truck Night: The September 11th Friday Night Food Truck Night was a tremendous success with an 
estimated 400 people in attendance. A Cruise In was also offered by the GRHOF; however, their need for use of 
the parking lot in front of City Hall interfered with the needed parking for our event. I recommend for future 
events, if a Cruise In is offered, it either be restricted to the parking lot behind the GRHOF or not allowed at the 
same time as our event. Our next event is October 2nd. 

Leak Adjustment Adjustments August 15 thru September 15:  

Vic Gravitt – Water $59.18, Sewer $78.71, Total $137.89 Notes: Adjusted over two cycles, main broke. 



      

  SUBJECT:  STAFF REPORT: FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE: 09/21/2020 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA 

 Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

• TO PRESENT FUND BALANCE AND ACTIVITY THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2020

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 

    SEE ATTACHED FINANCIAL REPORTS 

     OPTIONS: 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 

     REQUESTED BY: Hayden Wiggins, Finance Administrator 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR 

AGENDA ITEM #   11  



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND

July 1, 2020 - August 31, 2020

Budget Actual Percentage
REVENUES
      Taxes 1,235,050$       240,946$          19.51%
      Licenses and permits 115,975            35,044              30.22%
      Intergovernmental revenues 25,000              50,976              203.90%
      Fees 269,200            34,876              12.96%
      Other 234,473            11,934              5.09%

               Total revenues 1,879,698         373,776            19.88%

EXPENDITURES
   Department:
      Council 99,215              18,852              19.00%
      Mayor 21,380              33,038              154.53%
      Elections -                   -                   0.00%
      Administration 739,865            146,382            19.78%
      City Hall building 118,000            25,981              22.02%
      Animal control 1,500                -                   0.00%
      Roads 537,517            171,888            31.98%
      Parks 47,000              279,881            595.49%
      Planning and zoning 285,721            32,394              11.34%
      Economic development 29,500              2,000                6.78%

               Total expenditures 1,879,698         710,416            37.79%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (336,640)          

      Transfer in From Reserves 336,640            

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE -                   



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
WATER, SEWER, AND GARBAGE FUND

July 1, 2020 - August  31, 2020

Budget Actual Percentage
REVENUES
       Water fees 680,000$         130,777$         19.23%
       Sewer fees 794,000           149,054           18.77%
       Garbage fees 203,500           35,850             17.62%
       Miscellaneous 205,310           50,702             24.70%

               Total revenues 1,882,810        366,383           19.46%

EXPENDITURES
        Depreciation 574,000           68,836             11.99%
        Garbage service 212,000           29,157             13.75%
        Group insurance 85,056             21,984             25.85%
        Insurance 38,200             -                  0.00%
        Interest 87,450             14,622             16.72%
        Payroll taxes 22,752             5,685               24.99%
        Professional 98,000             14,716             15.02%
        Miscellaneous 52,500             8,822               16.80%
        Repairs/supplies 187,500           25,418             13.56%
        Retirement 17,000             3,957               23.28%
        Salaries 297,402           75,050             25.24%
        Technical services 66,000             6,698               10.15%
        Utilities 144,950           10,714             7.39%

               Total expenditures 1,882,810        285,659           15.17%

INCOME (LOSS) 80,724             



CITY OF DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA
SPLOST 

July 1, 2020 - August 31, 2020

SPLOST VI
Budget Actual Percentage

REVENUES
       Taxes 1,062,750         232,515            21.88%
       Interest 2,000                76                     3.80%
       Other -                   -                   0.00%

               Total revenues 1,064,750         232,591            21.84%

EXPENDITURES (Capital Outlays)
       City hall acquisition 680,000            26,322              3.87%
       Roads and sidewalks 375,750            22,408              5.96%
       Public works equipment - roads -                   -                   0.00%
       Sewer projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - sewer -                   -                   0.00%
       Water projects -                   -                   0.00%
       Public works equipment - water -                   -                   0.00%
       Farmers market 9,000                1,500                16.67%
       Parks and recreation -                   -                   0.00%

               Total expenditures 1,064,750         50,230              4.72%

TOTAL REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES 182,361            

      Transfer in From Reserves -                   

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 182,361            



City of Dawsonville
SPLOST VI Completion Schedule 
Inception through August 31, 2020

Current Prior Year Percent of Project
Original Project Project Current Budget Percent Project 

Project Budget Budget to Date Year Total Used Complete Description

Roads, Streets, Bridges and Sidewalks 1,250,000 1,250,000 504,739 22,408 527,147 42.17% 100.00% Maple Heights Paving Complete, Sidewalk 100%

Water and Sewer Projects 2,750,000 750,000 401,756 0 401,756 53.57% 54.00% GEFA Loan payments (well#111,water meters, well#110)

Park and Recreation Facilities 2,250,000 2,250,000 2,372,407 0 2,372,407 105.44% 115.00% Phase I complete, Phase II pending completion of restroom

Farmers Market Facility 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,071,402 1,500 1,072,902 107.29% 100.00% Project Complete

Public Works Facility and Equipment 400,000 400,000 284,559 0 284,559 71.14% 100.00% Funding saved went towards MSP

City Hall Acquistition 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,346,856 26,322 1,373,178 68.66% 67.00% We have paid more down as funding allowed

Total 9,650,000$         7,650,000$         5,981,719$         50,230$              6,031,949$         78.85%

MSP Recap

Total Through 8/31/20 2,372,407

Street Lighting for MSP 119,275

MSP Amphitheater Design 8,000

MSP Fencing 119,932

MSP Restroom 352,925

MSP Landscaping 168,137

Total MSP Expenditures 3,140,676$         


	1. 09.21.2020 AGENDA City Council Regular Meeting and Work Session
	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2 08.17.2020 MINUTES.draft
	7a. 4 09.02.2020 MINUTES_Special Called Meeting.draft
	7a. 5 09.10.2020 MINUTES_Special Called Meeting.draft
	7b. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CITY HALL CLOSURE
	7c. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items BEE RESOLUTION
	7c. 2 Dawsonville Bee City Resolution
	A RESOLUTION OF DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL
	DESIGNATING DAWSONVILLE AS A BEE CITY USA® AFFILIATE.

	7d. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items CITY-AMICALOLA FM AGREEMENT
	7d. 2 FM Use Agreement 2020.SECOND amendment
	5. Duties and Obligations of CHAMBER. CHAMBER shall hold a Farmers Market at the Pavilion each Saturday and Wednesday during the Term. Said schedule shall cover an eight (8) month period and include the start and ending times for each occurrence of th...

	7e. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items GARY BARR
	7e. 2 Consulting Agreement_Gary Barr
	8. Executive Summary For DHM APPOINTMENT
	9. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items GARBAGE 2021
	9. 2 Red Oak_City of Dawsonville bid 2021
	9. 3 City Code for Service Charge
	10. 1  Executive Summary For Agenda Items CITY MANAGER
	10. 1 09212020 CITY MANAGER REPORT TENTATIVE
	11. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR
	11. 2 General Fund Thru 8-31-20
	11. 3 WSG Fund Thru 8-31-20
	11. 4 SPLOST Fund Thru 8-31-20
	11. 5 SPLOST Percent Complete 8-31-20

